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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of the Hospital Authority

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Hospital
Authority ("HA") and its subsidiaries set out on pages 92 to 142, which
comprise the consolidated and HA balance sheets as at 31 March
2016, and the consolidated statement of income and expenditure, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes
in net assets for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Hospital Authority’s Responsibility for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Hospital Authority is responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and for such
internal control as the Hospital Authority determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 10 of the Hospital
Authority Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of HA and its subsidiaries as at 31
March 2016 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 August 2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
GodEaEEk

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

— Note HK$’000 HK$'000
) BEE 20165 3H318 2015638318
-E BT T BT T
Q.
3 Non-Current Assets 7R ENEE
> Property, plant and equipment 2 - #22 & &4 5 5,083,108 4,638,538
= Intangible assets & & &= 6 233,802 514,664
S Loans receivable fEW{&EZK 7 3,020 4,193
; Placement with the Exchange Fund SMNEZE$ 175K 8 13,300,000 13,300,000
& Fixed income instruments EFE A ST E 9 1,840,000 1,650,000
(=]
- 20,459,930 20,107,395
1 bt e S o A A
3 Current Assets REIEE
Inventories 7 & 10 1,267,360 1,313,568
92 Loans receivable JEU(EK 7 947 1,053
Accounts receivable JEUZBRX 1 316,406 353,110
Other receivables Hfth B BR R 12 177,123 216,529
Deposits and prepayments %4 N I {58 13 321,972 279,630
o Placement with the Exchange Fund SMNE&& & 173 8 1,667,266 962,359
2 Fixed income instruments EF A BT E 9 250,000 -
-g.: Cash and bank balances 34 KMiRTT4565 14 29,781,697 20,803,731
> 33,782,771 23,929,980
; Current Liabilities FREh& &
S Balance with Samaritan Fund #3550 B4 4464 15 999,630 669,972
'i Creditors and accrued charges &1 A K FEft £ 16 10,108,179 10,348,841
3 Deposits received B4z 17 241,059 208,052
5 11,348,868 11,226,865
3 Net Current Assets 7 8% &% E 22,433,903 12,703,115
g T ERASSERRERSESE o SARRTE e
i Total Assets Less Current Liabilities #&ERAiHA® = 42,893,833 32,810,510
= Non-Current Liabilities JEREI& &
z Balance with Samaritan Fund #5550 B4 4464 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
o Death and disability liabilities e = RISEEFE T 18 238,782 237,892
- Deferred income iEIEUTZS 19 12,503,367 12,756,119
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund AfL& i 1EB AE S 20 10,000,000 -
,,,,,,, 28,742,149 18,994,011
Net Assets EEFE 14,151,684 13,816,499
Capital subventions and capital donations & 7<% B [ & 745 i 21 5,316,910 5,153,202
Designated fund 5§ EE £ 22 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA & 3,757,405 3,585,928
Total Funds E &40 14,151,684 13,816,499

Dr KAM Pok Man HEX{E L Dr LEUNG Pak Yin, JP R BE 4
Chairman Chief Executive

Finance Committee 1TERABEL

WBLZESE

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ #98F 1428 KM X R AR E BBz —2BH -
financial statements.



Balance Sheet
SE8E%

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

Note HK$°000 HK$'000
FifEE 20164E3H31H 2015463 A31H
BT T BT
Non-Current Assets 3EREIEE
Property, plant and equipment #)% - #28 & &4 5 5,083,108 4,638,538
Intangible assets & E b 233,802 512,718
Loans receivable fEW{&EZ 7 3,020 4,193
Placement with the Exchange Fund SMNEZE & 177K 8 13,300,000 13,300,000
Fixed income instruments EFEAETE 9 1,840,000 1,650,000
,,,,,,, 20,459,930 20,105,449
Current Assets REIEE
Inventories 7 & 10 1,267,360 1,313,568
Loans receivable FEUER 7 947 1,053
Accounts receivable FEUIBRERX " 316,406 353,110
Other receivables Hfth B BR TR 12 177,123 216,529
Deposits and prepayments %% N I8 { 58 13 321,889 279,547
Placement with the Exchange Fund SNEZE & 1758 8 1,667,266 962,359
Fixed income instruments EF A BT E 9 250,000 -
Cash and bank balances 34 KM iR1T4564 14 29,781,697 20,803,731
,,,,,,, 33,782,688 23929897
Current Liabilities RE & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #5550 &4 4464 15 999,630 669,972
Creditors and accrued charges &1 A K fEft £ 16 10,108,102 10,348,764
Deposits received B4z 17 241,059 208,052
,,,,,,, 11,368,791 11,226,788
NetCurrent Assets i®&=#® 22,433897 12,703,109
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities #&ERi® 42,893,827 32,808,558
Non-Current Liabilities JEREN& &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #5550 B4 4464 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities 5t = & {55 EF & & 18 238,782 237,892
Deferred income EIEURZS 19 12,503,367 12,756,119
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund AfL‘& 1B AES 20 10,000,000 =
,,,,,,, 28,742,149 18,994,011
Net Assets EEFE 14,151,678 13,814,547
Capital subventions and capital donations & 7<% B [ & 745 i 21 5,316,910 5,151,256
Designated fund 5§ EE £ 22 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA & 3,757,399 3,585,922
Total Funds E£#%F 14,151,678 13,814,547

Dr KAM Pok Man HE X &+
Chairman
Finance Committee

MBREGER

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Dr LEUNG Pak Yin, JP RaBE4E

Chief Executive
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Consolidated Statement of Income and Expenditure

MON<BER
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
M &E HZE2016F HE2015F
SH31BLEE 3A3MBIEFE
BET T BEBTT
Income WA
Recurrent Government subvention 4 & 4B T4 Bh 50,538,379 48,037,806
Capital Government subvention for building projects 1,143,406 808,545
BETROEREDTHEBD
Hospital/clinic fees and charges %8Ft / 2E ATk & 23 3,597,986 3,422,811
Donations 8#Z 64 13
Transfers from 3 :
Designated donation fund 5B ES 19 145,645 229,599
Minor Works Projects Fund /N T2 E &£ & 19 1,066,209 1,011,020
Capital subventions & ZAN##E) 21 1,024,384 673,485
Capital donations & 7~ 185 21 113,686 110,317
Investment income #&& W zs 24 188,185 266,914
Other income HAth Yz 826,561 668,952
58,644,505 55,229,462
Expenditure %M
Staff costs B TR 25 (40,298,679) (37,234,711)
Drugs %% (5,710,382) (5,328,465)
Medical supplies and equipment Z&&E¥) 5 & 2448 (2,558,198) (2,326,445)
Utilities charges 2R (1,174,165) (1,201,717)
Repairs and maintenance ## & MIRE (1,894,103) (1,741,345)
Building projects funded by the Government 2(g)ii) (2,209,615) (1,819,565)
BT 2L TR & X (iii)
Operating lease expenses &:EMEMY (160,342) (156,117)
Depreciation and amortisation 78 N #§5 5& & 6 (1,108,886) (779,103)
Other operating expenses H & &% 26 (3,379,795) (3,265,135)
(58,494,165) (53,852,603)
Surplus for the year F£RZE & 150,340 1,376,859

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

FRBENR2EMKERALRE MIERERN—#D



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

NS ES L) b

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B =k HZE 20165 EHZ= 20154
3A31AILEE 3ANALEE
BET T BT T
Surplus for the year FRZE & 150,340 1,376,859
Other comprehensive income H{thZmEULzE
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to income or
expenditure:
HigesmoBARAST HMIER
- Additions to capital subventions and capital donations 21 1,284,623 1,301,538
RN GENYS SN
- Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 21 17,155 25,439
ERE/TRBERES
- Transfers to consolidated statement of income and 21 (1,138,070) (783,802)
expenditure
ERT e EE R
Item that will not be reclassified to income or expenditure:
TeEnsEARARZLMIER
- Remeasurement of death liability 18 21,137 (11,286)
R RAMEEEN=
Total comprehensive income for the year F A2 HE UK EE 335,185 1,908,748

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated 298 142 B MM sER AR A B S HER M —

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GOIREMENRE

For the year ended  For the year ended

SjusWaje)s JeIduURUL4 PaYIPNY

5 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
_E Note HK$’000 HK$°000
o B BZE2016F EHZE20154F
a 3HA31HILEE 3A31HIEFE
3 BETT BETT
E Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 29 (818,911) 1,416,049
§' BEEY (R / AE\ReFE
;’; Investing activities & &%)
-'gb Investment income received ZUI% & Yzs 227,758 255,592
5' Purchases of property, plant and equipment 5 (1,182,441) (1,199,257)
3 IBEWE - WS REE
96 Purchases of intangible assets B % &2 & & b (119,337) (127,720)
Net increase in bank deposits with original maturity (131,767) (4,367,923)
over three months
[RPREIEA B H8:8 = (i B 0 R1 T SRAF FEE N
Increase in fixed income instruments [EFE A BT EE AN (440,000) (1,650,000)
g Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund - (7,300,000)
2 SNEE ST HIE M
= Net cash used in investing activities (1,645,787) (14,389,308)
z WEEBRARSEE
g Net cash outflow before financing activities (2,464,698) (12,973,259)
i mEMZREFERL
5 Financing activities §i& % #)
E Interest earned for Minor Works Projects Fund 72,200 79,715
- N THRIE B B S FrER S
§ Capital subventions & AN##B) 21 1,187,599 1,143,643
i Capital donations &7~ 85 21 97,024 157,895
E Net cash generated from financing activities 1,356,823 1,381,253
'g MEBEEBMAGHSER
o Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,107,875) (11,592,006)
ReRMEEE2HD
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,066,200 14,658,206
FHzRekBEE2EE
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year & 7384 KRS EE 14 1,958,325 3,066,200
Notes: EEE
(1) The cash flow for the placement with the Exchange Fund on (1) REGEFEESFRINERSHFR RS
behalf of the Samaritan Fund was netted off with the outstanding MEBELHBRNEIEFEE SRR A
balance with the Samaritan Fund and the detailed arrangement is LHERMIEE 15 B o

disclosed in note 15.
(2) The cash flow for bank deposits designated for Public-Private  (2) AFLEHIFB ARERIEERITFRZER SN

Partnership (PPP) Endowment Fund was netted off with the PPP SEELHNRALEHIERAES - sFl%HE
Endowment Fund and the detailed arrangement is disclosed in P FE20 %5 -
note 20.

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated 98 142E KM X R AGRE BB HREA —2H -
financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
GORPEEZIRE

Mt 58 5% 2 I B4 A O o8 0 8 S A

0
~

Capital
subventions
and capital
donations
[Note 21]
!"K$1000 Designated Revenue
BB Fund Reserve Total
RERIBHE HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[ Bf&E21] EEES ON= 1] A
BT T BEET T BT T BET T
At 1 April 2014 R=Z—MNFMA—AH 4,610,027 5,077,369 2,220,355 11,907,751
Total comprehensive income for the year 543,175 - 1,365,573 1,908,748
FAREEWZBRE
At31March 2015 R —ZE—HF=A=+—H 5,153,202 5,077,369 3,585,928 13,816,499
Total comprehensive income for the year 163,708 - 171,477 335,185
FREEWRERE
At 31 March 2016 R=—Z—~F=A=+—H 5,316,910 5,077,369 3,757,405 14,151,684

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated 98 142E MM X R AR A BB Rz —2BH °
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1. The Hospital Authority

(a) Background

The Hospital Authority (“HA") and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group” in the consolidated financial
statements. HA is a statutory body established in Hong Kong
on 1 December 1990 under the Hospital Authority Ordinance
(Cap.113). The Hospital Authority Ordinance provides HA with
the powers to manage and control the delivery of public hospital
services in Hong Kong. Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance,

HA is responsible amongst other matters for the following:

e advising the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government”) of the needs of the
public for hospital services and of the resources required to

meet those needs;

e managing and developing the public hospital system;

e recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health
appropriate policies on fees for the use of hospital services by

the public;

e establishing public hospitals; and

e promoting, assisting and taking part in education and training
of persons involved or to be involved in hospital services
or other services relevant to the health of the public, and

research relating to hospital services.

Pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Hospital Authority Ordinance, an
agreement was entered into between the Government and HA
on 3 June 2011 (“Agreement”), under which the Government
and HA agreed that HA shall be responsible for managing and
controlling the government lands and the hospitals, clinics,
facilities, buildings and premises established thereon (as set out
in Annex A of the Agreement and referred to as “Properties”],
as well as the facilities and amenities (as set out in Annex B
of the Agreement) that may be provided on the Properties.
The ownership of the Properties continues to be held by the

Government.

HA has also entered into agreements with the individual
governing bodies of the ex-subvented hospitals which allowed
HA to assume ownership of some operating assets as at
1 December 1991 and to manage and control other assets, the
ownership of which remains with the individual governing bodies.

As a result, HA has assumed responsibility for the management
of the public hospital operations since 1 December 1991.
Also, all operating and capital commitments outstanding as at
1 December 1991 were assumed by HA, except for the capital
works projects funded under the Capital Works Reserve Fund of

the Government.

B 5 2 Bl 51

EREER

EREVBHRET BREBER([HBE
B RENBHERBA&EEH] BE
BR—ANZEFTA—BREBE(ERE
ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁux%ma);ﬁz_u%/fmlh
BEREEREI) B TEEREERE
E%@i%h%%m%ﬁ BRI (B PR
BERER) BERMESIENAT

omwwm

s MARHBRMRBEZERLMMBZZE
R MEERRITRERA (T 52
HER

o ERNIERAEMFRL

s MARMERE h%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%% )
RYNEERRBREZIRENOEER

_L/ *E

\ \

%

&5

o B - MBRBEBIEEI S
Be AR5 2k E At B2 A 3K ﬁimﬁ%WZA
TEHE RIFdl - AR A BB b RT Y
R o

RIEEREEBKRPIES (a) - BRFHE
%%%E:ﬁ——iﬁﬂ_ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
(Mp#))  EHRAE mgﬁﬁaﬁ&
BRENBT L FZNE EHE ‘v%
P~ R BEYRET (RHEMTA
FrEUais [ 1) - LA R ZE AR A
& (R H 1 B PTEL) - MIEHERE
DERBFAE -

BERITEER AT ERNE A REE
Kip#  RAFBERR—NANA—F+=H
—HRR-LEEEENERE  UKE
BEMEEHMEAEDBNMEREaHE
MEE -

B - BERBE-—NANL—F+-HA A
EEAEMABREFNERE - LI - kR
HBAERTEFEESBRNEATIE
FHEISN - RN —F+=HA—RBK
TR ZERENEAE  THEER

g



Notes to the Financial Statements
1. The Hospital Authority (continued)

(a) Background (Continued)

As part of the Government's healthcare reform plan, HA has
taken over the management and operation of all general
outpatient clinics ("GOPCs”) from the Department of Health
by July 2003. Under the arrangement, the title and ownership
in respect of the related operating assets of the GOPCs were
retrospectively transferred to HA in July 2003 after receiving
formal approval from the Government in June 2006. These

assets were transferred at nil value.

In order to promote the development and research of Chinese
medicine in Hong Kong, HA's subsidiary, HACM Limited entered
into agreements with 10 non-governmental organisations
(“NGOs”) in collaboration with certain universities in Hong
Kong to operate 18 Chinese Medicine Centres for Training and
Research ("CMCTRs"). Under the agreements with the NGOs,
HACM Limited has provided an annual subvention to the NGOs
for operating CMCTRs in Hong Kong. These NGO clinics have
provided Chinese medicine outpatient services including the
prescription of Chinese herbal medicine and related services.
HACM Limited has also provided funding to six tripartite CMCTRs
for provision of Chinese medicine services to HA patients
under the Integrated Chinese-Western Medicine ("ICWM"] Pilot
Programme which have been implemented at seven hospitals for

three disease areas.

In order to support the Government-led electronic health record
("eHR”) programme, which is an essential part of the healthcare
reform, HA has been engaged to serve as the technical agency
to the Government, leveraging its experience and know-how in
the Clinical Management System (“CMS”]. With this role, HA
undertakes multiple streams of eHR related projects, which are
funded by the recurrent subvention and other designated funding
from the Government. During the financial year ended 31 March
2016, HA recognised HK$261,809,000 (2015: HK$246,150,000) as
other income to match with the expenditure incurred in relation

to the eHR related projects.

On 19 October 2011, HA set up a subsidiary, eHR HK Limited, to
act as a custodian to hold, maintain and license the intellectual

property rights and assets related to the eHR programme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. The Hospital Authority (continued)

(b) E&fz K HAbtkis

E-T-AFZAZ+—B - mEEREE
REEHBER  AEETES RSB

(b) Hospitals and other institutions

At 31 March 2016, HA had under its management and control the
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following hospitals, charitable trusts and institutions:

Hospitals: B

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital HB XY ER AT R ER
Bradbury Hospice BEBEESHL

Caritas Medical Centre B BT

Castle Peak Hospital ST

Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok HH) AZRCESR
Cheshire Home, Shatin Y HZEKHEER

The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay RARBEABEAR

Grantham Hospital
Haven of Hope Hospital

= ERrS
gi//itﬁlgfﬁ
= EE RS
2= B E=JT

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital BB ER
Hong Kong Eye Hospital BBREIER
Kowloon Hospital TR

Kwai Chung Hospital
Kwong Wah Hospital

omEERT

s o
EZEERT

MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 23R 1R R
North District Hospital Jbl= B
North Lantau Hospital JE KU 1 B8R
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital R}

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

RERABRABITZEL

Pok Oi Hospital EE b
Prince of Wales Hospital e R HT %R £ B8 e

Princess Margaret Hospital
Queen Elizabeth Hospital

R

FRAEEERE

Queen Mary Hospital )
Ruttonjee Hospital FFURER
Shatin Hospital W H
Siu Lam Hospital NEEERT
St. John Hospital RMNEERT
Tai Po Hospital NifFEELT
Tang Shiu Kin Hospital BEEER Bl
Tsan Yuk Hospital BEE b
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 1R B
Tuen Mun Hospital P ERT
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RERT

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
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Tung Wah Hospital RERRT
United Christian Hospital EBHEHE SR
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital EUEn

Yan Chai Hospital o



Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

(c)

(a)

The Hospital Authority (continued)

Hospitals and other institutions (Continued)

Charitable Trusts:

North District Hospital Charitable Foundation

Prince of Wales Hospital Charitable Foundation

The Hong Kong Eye Hospital Charitable Trust
(Terminated on 29 January 2016)

The Hospital Authority Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority New Territories West Cluster Hospitals
Charitable Trust

The Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Charitable Trust

The Princess Margaret Hospital Charitable Trust

The Queen Elizabeth Hospital Charitable Trust

Other Institutions:

eHR HK Limited

HACare (Liquidated on 5 August 2015)

HACM Limited

Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service

Rehabaid Centre (Ceased management and control on
8 April 2016)

Specialist outpatient clinics

General outpatient clinics

Other clinics and associated units

Principal office

The address of the principal office of HA is Hospital Authority
Building, 147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") as appropriate to Government subvented and not-
for-profit organisations. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets which are stated at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying HA's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(b)

(c)

Principal accounting policies (continued) 2.

Basis of consolidation

(b)

The financial statements of the Group include the income and
expenditure of the Head Office, subsidiaries, all Hospitals,
Charitable Trusts, Specialist Outpatient Clinics, General
Outpatient Clinics and other institutions under its management
and control made up to 31 March 2016.

The financial statements reflect the recorded book values of
those assets owned and the liabilities assumed by the Group.

Subsidiaries

(c)

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date that control is transferred to
the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control

ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions within the Group have been eliminated on
consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries are
consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

At 31 March 2016, the principal subsidiaries of HA comprise:
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HACM Limited To steer the development and delivery  Hong Kong 100
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rights and assets related to eHR
programme
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(d)

(e)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs,
including interpretations, amendments or improvements to the
existing standards, which become effective in the current period.
The following amendments to standards which are effective for
the Group’s financial year beginning 1 April 2015 are relevant to
the Group:

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of these revised HKFRSs has no significant impact
on the results and financial position of the Group.

The HKICPA has also issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs
which are effective for accounting period beginning on or after
1 April 2016. The Group has not early adopted these new/
revised HKFRSs in the financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment but is not yet in a position to quantify the impact
of these new/revised HKFRSs on its results of operations and
financial position.

Recognition of income

Subventions for recurrent expenditure are recognised on an
accruals basis, except for those subventions for designated
programs or capital items that are recognised when the related
expenditure is incurred as set out in note 2(r).

Hospital/clinic fees and charges are recognised when services
are provided.

Transfers from the designated donation fund and capital
donations are recognised as set out in note 2(f).

Transfers from the capital subventions, Minor Works Projects
Fund and PPP Fund are recognised as set out in note 2(r).

Investment income from fixed income instruments is recognised
as set out in note 2(k).

Investment income from bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

Donations

(i)

(ii)

Donated assets

Properties, computer software and systems donated to the
Group each with a value below HK$250,000 each and other
donated assets with a value below HK$100,000 each are
recorded as income and expenditure in the year of receipt of
the assets.

Properties, computer software and systems donated to
the Group each with a value of HK$250,000 or above and
other donated assets each with a value of HK$100,000 or
above are capitalised on receipt of assets according to the
policy set out in note 2(g)(i) and note 2(i). The amount of
the donated assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in total funds under capital
donations. Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation or
amortisation charge for these assets and the net book value
of assets disposed of is transferred from capital donations to
the statement of income and expenditure.

Cash donations

Cash donations for specific use as prescribed by the donor
are accounted for in the designated donation fund. When the
fund is utilised and spent for expenditure not meeting the
capitalisation policy as set out in note 2(g]li) or note 2(i}, they
are accounted for as expenditure of the designated donation
fund. Cash donations that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in note 2(g)(iv) and
note 2(i) respectively are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in total funds under capital
donations, and the corresponding amounts are capitalised
as property, plant and equipment or intangible assets
respectively. Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation
or amortisation charge for these assets and the net book
value of assets disposed of is transferred from capital
donations to the statement of income and expenditure.

Non-designated donations for general operating purposes
are recorded as donations in the statement of income and
expenditure upon receipt of cash.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(g)

(h)

Capitalisation of property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Effective from 1 December 1991, the following categories
of assets which give rise to economic benefits have been
capitalised:

Building projects costing HK$250,000 or more; and

All other assets costing HK$100,000 or more on an
individual basis.

The accounting policy for depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is set out in note 2(h).

For expenditure on subsequent improvement to properties
the ownership of which has not been vested with HA, the
amount spent is capitalised only if the improvement does
not form part of the properties and can be re-used by HA
when re-located. Otherwise, the expenditure is charged
to the statement of income and expenditure in the year as
incurred.

For properties which are funded by the Government through
HA but are owned by an ex-subvented governing body,
the associated expenditure is charged to the statement
of income and expenditure in the year as incurred. Under
the agreements with ex-subvented governing bodies, the
ownership of building projects, although funded by the
Government through HA, is vested with the governing
bodies.

Expenditure on furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor
vehicles and computer hardware is capitalised (subject
to the minimum expenditure limits set out in note 2(g)
(i) above) and the corresponding amounts are recognised
under capital subventions and capital donations for capital
expenditure funded by the Government and donations
respectively.

Property, plant and equipment transferred from the
hospitals to HA at 1 December 1991 was recorded at nil
value.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Additions represent
new or replacement of specific components of an asset. An
asset’s carrying value is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(h)

(i)

(j)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Depreciation (Continued)

The historical cost of assets acquired and the value of donated
assets received by the Group since 1 December 1991 are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the expected
useful lives of the assets as follows:
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Leasehold improvements

HEWEERE RIEHE 2 5
Buildings 20 - 50 years F
HEY

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10years
FE  BERENRKE

Motor vehicles 5 -7 years
i

Computer equipment 3 - byears F
BB

Over the life of the lease to which the improvement relates

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement
of income and expenditure.

Capital expenditure in progress is not depreciated until the asset
is placed into commission.

Intangible assets

Computer software and systems including related development
costs costing HK$250,000 or more each, which give rise to
economic benefits are capitalised as intangible assets. Intangible
assets are stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
impairment and are amortised on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of one to three years.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

HA has designated the placement with the Exchange Fund
as a “financial asset at fair value through profit or loss”. HA
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition, and such classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value and transaction costs are expensed to the statement
of income and expenditure. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or have been
transferred and HA has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Fixed income instruments

Fixed income instruments are classified as held-to-maturity
investments on the basis that the Group has the positive intention

and ability to hold the investments to maturity.

Fixed income instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis
and stated at amortised cost, less any impairment loss recognised
to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of any
discount or premium on the acquisition of fixed income instruments
is aggregated with other investment income receivable over the

term of the instrument using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that
fixed income instruments are impaired at each reporting date.
The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the fixed income instruments and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the fixed
income instruments is reduced and the amount of the loss is

recognised in the statement of income and expenditure.

() Inventories

Inventories, which comprise drugs, other medical and general
consumable stores, are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Where applicable, provision is made for obsolete and
slow-moving items. Inventories are stated net of such provision
in the balance sheet. Net realisable value is determined with

reference to the replacement cost.

(m) Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
accounts receivable is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the
carrying amount of the accounts receivable and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the accounts receivable is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised as an expense in the statement of income
and expenditure. Decrease in the previously recognised impairment
loss shall be reversed by adjusting the allowance account. When
an accounts receivable is uncollectible and eventually written off,
the respective uncollectible amount is offset against the allowance
account for accounts receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the current year's expense

in the statement of income and expenditure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, and bank deposits with original maturity within three
months.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. A
contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall
due. Payments made to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
plans where the Group’s obligations under the schemes
are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan. The retirement benefit costs
charged in the statement of income and expenditure
represent the contributions payable in respect of the current
year to the Group’s defined contribution retirement benefit
plan and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(q)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Termination benefits costs

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s
employment is terminated before the normal retirement age
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits costs when there is an obligation to make such
payments without possibility of withdrawal.

Death and disability benefits costs

The cost of the Group’s obligations in respect of death and
disability benefits provided to employees is recognised as
staff costs in the statement of income and expenditure with
reference to annual actuarial valuations performed by an
independent qualified actuary.

The death benefits for eligible employees are accounted
for as post employment defined benefits. Remeasurement
of death liability arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income.

The disability benefits are accounted for as other long-
term employee benefits. Remeasurement of disability
liability arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in the
statement of income and expenditure.

Further details of the death and disability liabilities are set
out in note 18.

Other employee benefits costs

Other employee benefits such as annual leave and contract
gratuity are accounted for as they accrue.

Government subvention

Subvention grants approved for the year other than the following
are classified as recurrent subvention income.

Government grants for building projects are classified and
recognised as capital subvention income when the amount is
spent on expenditure which does not meet the capitalisation
policy of property, plant and equipment as set out in notes 2(g)(il,
2(g)(ii) and 2(g){iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(r]

(s)

(t)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Government subvention (Continued)

The one-off grant received from the Government for minor
works projects (under Subhead 8083MM] together with the
related investment income are recognised as deferred income -
Minor Works Projects Fund. Each year, the amount spent on the
minor works projects is transferred from deferred income to the
statement of income and expenditure or other comprehensive
income as appropriate. Further details of the deferred income -
Minor Works Projects Fund are set out in note 19(b).

The Government allocated HK$10,000,000,000 to HA to establish
an endowment fund for PPP initiatives. The investment returns of
the PPP Endowment Fund, together with the remaining balance
of the one-off designated funding for HA's PPP programmes
as at 31 March 2016 are recognised as deferred income - PPP
Fund. Each year, the amount spent on the PPP programmes is
transferred from the deferred income to the statement of income
and expenditure or other comprehensive income as appropriate.
Further details of the PPP Fund are set out in note 19(c).

Government subventions that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in note 2(g)(iv] and note
2(i) respectively are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in total funds under capital subventions, and
the corresponding amounts are capitalised as property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets respectively. This includes
capital expenditure on furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor
vehicles, computer hardware, software and systems. Each year,
an amount equal to the depreciation or amortisation charge
for these assets and net book value of assets disposed of is
transferred from capital subventions to the statement of income
and expenditure.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as expenses
in the statement of income and expenditure on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates (“the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(t)

(u)

(a)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the statement of income
and expenditure except for Minor Works Projects Fund, which are
recognised as deferred income.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa. Related parties also include key
management personnel having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

For the purpose of these financial statements, transactions between
the Group and Government departments, agencies or Government
controlled entities, other than those transactions that arise in the
normal dealings between the Government and the Group, are
considered to be related party transactions.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities of providing healthcare services to patients,
the administration of drugs, the employment of a large workforce
and the investment activities are primary areas of financial risks
being mitigated by the Group’s financial risk management process.
The Group’s underlying principles of financial risk management
are to transfer the cost of financial risks of significant level
through insurance with a diversity of insurers, to self insure for
the operational risks and to comply with regulatory insurance
requirements as an employer and owner of a motor fleet.

With regard to investments, in accordance with the Group's
policies and guidelines, the primary objectives are to meet
liquidity requirements, to protect capital and to provide a
reasonable return. The investment portfolio (“Portfolio”] as at 31
March 2016 consisted of bank deposits, fixed income instruments
and placement with the Exchange Fund. Based on the risk
control measures as summarised below, the risk of default by
the counterparties is considered minimal and the Portfolio has
no significant concentration of credit risk. Besides, the Group
has no significant currency risk because substantially all assets
and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group’s
functional and presentation currency. The Group manages its
cash flow requirements and risk as disclosed in note 3(c).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is the risk that counterparties may
default on its bank deposits, fixed income instruments and
placement with the Exchange Fund.

Bank deposits are placed with the Group’s approved banks
which are of investment grade as determined by Moody’s or
Standard and Poor’s. For bank deposits, banks must meet
the minimum credit rating not lower than Moody’s Baa3 or
equivalent.

All transactions in fixed income instruments are settled
or paid for upon delivery through approved banks and safe
kept by the approved custodian with high credit ranking.
The credit risks of the issuers are assessed based on the
credit rating determined by Moody’s or Standard and Poor’s.
Investments in fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates
of deposits) are with issuers of credit rating not lower than
Moody's A3 or equivalent. Where the maturity is over three
years, the credit rating is not lower than Moody's Aa3 or
equivalent at the time of investments.

The placement with the Exchange Fund is entered into
between HA and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
("HKMA") and it is expected that the HKMA can fulfill its
contractual obligations to HA in respect of the placement.

Interest rate risk

The Portfolio’s interest rate risk arises from interest
bearing cash at bank, bank deposits and fixed income
instruments. Cash at bank, which earns interest at variable
rates, gives rise to cash flow interest rate risk. Fixed rate
bank deposits and fixed income instruments expose the
Portfolio to fair value interest rate risk. Sensitivity analyses
have been performed by the Group with regard to interest
rate risk as at 31 March 2016. If interest rates had been
increased or decreased by 50 basis points, which represent
management’'s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in those rates, and all other variables were held
constant, the effect on the Group’s surplus and net assets is
insignificant.

Price risk

Fixed income instruments are subject to the price risk
caused by the changes in the perceived credit risks of the
issuers and market interest rates as disclosed in note 3(a)(i)
and note 3(allii) respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.

(a)

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Currency risk

The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are substantially
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group’s functional
and presentation currency, and hence will not be exposed to
significant currency risk.

Fair values estimation

(i)

Financial assets carried at fair values

The Group’s financial instruments that are measured at
fair value are categorised by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1. None of the instruments
of the Group is included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2. None of the instruments of the Group is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Fair values estimation (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

- The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at the
reporting date, with the resulting value discounted back
to present value.

- Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instruments.

The placement with the Exchange Fund is included in
level 3. The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the financial years ended 31 March 2015
and 31 March 2016:
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For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000

BZE2016F HZE20154F

3B31HIELEE 3A3MHIEFEE

BT T BT

At beginning of year RA%F#] 14,262,359 6,408,438
Addition [note 19(b)] 0L Ki5E19 (b)] - 7,300,000
Interest F.8 704,907 553,921
At end of year [note 8] IREF4 [ M7t 8] 14,967,266 14,262,359

Financial assets not reported at fair values

The fair values of fixed income instruments [i.e. certificates
of deposits) at the reporting date are provided by the
banks from whom the instruments are purchased. These
instruments are summarised below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values estimation (Continued)

(i) Financial assets not reported at fair values (Continued)

The Group and HA
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Carrying Value Fair Value
REEE AREE
At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
2016 E3H31H 201543 A31H 201653 A31H 201543 A31H
BT T BT BEET T BT
Fixed income instruments 2,090,000 1,650,000 2,103,181 1,658,626

BEAETA

(i) The carrying values of other financial assets and liabilities
such as cash and bank balances, loans receivable, accounts
receivable and trade payables approximate their fair values
and accordingly, no disclosure of fair values for these items
is presented.

Capital management

Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, the resources of the
Group consist of the following:

(i) All money paid by the Government to HA and appropriated
for that purpose by the Legislative Council and otherwise
provided to HA by the Government; and

(i) All other money and property, including gifts, donations, fees,
rent, interest and accumulations of income received by HA.

In this regard, the capital of the Group comprises revenue
reserve, designated fund, capital subventions, capital
donations and deferred income as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. At 31 March 2016, the capital of the Group was
HK$26,655,051,000 (2015: HK$26,572,618,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
3. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Capital management (Continued)

The Group’s objective for managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern to ensure
sustainability of the public health care system. As in previous
years, the Group has adopted prudent financial measures
to ensure public resources are properly and efficiently used.
Through the annual planning exercise, resource requirement of
individual hospital clusters is identified and considered against
the total amount of resources available to the HA, so as to
maintain existing levels of services, to train and build up Hong
Kong's future healthcare workforce by recruiting new graduates,
and to provide some pragmatic service growth in meeting the
pressing demand for public hospital services. Measures to
improve service quality and efficiency are also being explored.
To facilitate the delivery of value-for-money services, the Group
regularly monitors a set of performance indicators covering

service output, performance and resources.

4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgments

In preparing the financial statements, management is required
to exercise significant judgments in the selection and application
of accounting policies, including making estimates and
assumptions. The following is a review of the more significant
accounting policies that are impacted by judgments and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported
under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

(a) Provision for doctors’ and non-doctors’ claims

165 doctors had filed claims against HA for alleged failure to
grant rest days, statutory holidays, public holidays and overtime
worked over a period going back to 1996 in High Court Action
No. 1924 of 2002. Similar claims were lodged by other doctors
in the Labour Tribunal between 2006 and 2012 and they were
adjourned pending assessment of the High Court claim. HA had
effected payment under two settlement packages implemented
in 2006 and 2010 to eligible doctors between the financial years

ended 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2013.

Following the Court of Final Appeal ruling in October 2009 and
the assessment of damages for the three lead plaintiffs in High
Court Action No. 1924 of 2002 in June 2012, damages in respect
of the three lead plaintiffs were paid in September 2012. HA has
since settled over 90% of remaining claims in High Court Action

No. 1924 of 2002 and the Labour Tribunal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

b.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (continued)

Provision for doctors” and non-doctors’ claims
(Continued)

Meanwhile, HA had effected payment under the call payment
offer to eligible non-doctors approved by the HA Board between
the financial years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2016. A
number of non-doctors had filed claims against HA in the Labour
Tribunal for rest days, statutory and public holidays or claims
under the call payment offer. These claims were either settled or
adjourned by the Labour Tribunal.

As at 31 March 2016, HA has adjusted the liability provision
to HK$10,502,000 (2015: HK$121,224,000), representing
management's best estimates taking into consideration of the
court rulings. A write-back of provision of HK$107,695,000 was
recorded as other income for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Provision for medical malpractice claims

The Group co-insures and retains a designated sum for each
medical malpractice claim. For those professional liability claims
in excess of the retained sum, the claims will be borne by the
insurer. In view of the complex nature and long development
period of the claims, a Claims Review Panel consisting of the
participating medical malpractice insurers, the external panel law
firms appointed by the insurers and HA's in-house experts review
the status of potential and active claims semi-annually and assess
the provision required on each significant case. An independent
qualified actuary also assists the Group on the assessment of the
exposure of other reported cases based on historical development
trend of the claims settlement. With reference to the assessments
and the analysis by the Claims Review Panel and the external
actuarial consultant respectively, management reviews the
claims exposure and determines the provision required to cover
the Group's exposure at each reporting date. Such provision is
included in accrued charges and other payables in note 16.

Death and disability liabilities

The Group engages an independent qualified actuary to assess
the present value of obligations for its death and disability scheme
at each year end date. Major actuarial assumptions include the
discount rate and salary inflation rate which are set out in note
18. The present value of the Group’s obligations is discounted with
reference to market yields on Hong Kong Government Bonds,
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the
related obligations. The long-term salary inflation is generally
based on the market’s long-term expectation of price inflation.

B 5 e Bl 51

4.

(a)

(c)

B SETfh e R E ()

BERBEBEHEZBE®

—H BERATEBRNAERKNIE
TREBENREMENR  BERER
EZ=F-A=1T—HLEE-Z—X
FoA=ZT ALY BREFEINTH
& —HIFBARBHMKRER  EXERY
MAZBRIABRIZIREHET ZROME
REBEHENBERRHAR @ FLA
REKEINE A REEEZREE
HIE o

HE 30

H

HE-_ZT-—XEF=ZA=1+—H0 BER
1% & £ & & A & & 7% %10,502,000 7T
(ZZ— R : ##121,224,0007T) © &
FOHERTEEBEERAREHSIEN R
B (st e HHE-_S—R"F=-A=+—
HIEE 4 E - 748 107,695,000 7T #) % #
BB EE KA o

BRARBRER

SEBERRRBREALRRERS - I
RERBFECRBRBRIEEHE - Bl
HERBENEXETHR  ShRR QA
A BN FRRMNEREERERE
B —EaAREEAREEHNRRB D
A RERABIMZENINLEEITNER
BERNERMARNERRIZES® &
BYFRABERBEAERRERNBER
YHEERERERMFNRE SER
BUBEMTEREBERRBENER
B HHEEFEEC2RERNHAR
B - EREE2ERRBIZTE SR
FBEEBE DRI PERRFE MO - 2R
HERMER WX HhE B EERARNE
B R R AT R - L IRBHEDI AR RE 16
B [ B R EAh RSN o

RTRERBANEE

EEZFETAERNBLBEMNRE A
USSR T RBETEENEEIMNERE -
RANTERERREBEM T 18T
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EHRE EREEEBETFHEEN
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5. Property, plant and equipment 5.

Furniture,
fixtures and

M~ RN riE

The Group £E

Building and equipment Motor  Computer
improvements HK$°000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 XA EHE HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BEYREE HERRE RE B st
BE¥T T BE¥T T BT T BET T BT T
Cost A7
At 1 April 2015 R 20154 A1 H 1,064,751 9,802,334 253,687 732,635 11,853,407
Reclassifications B 548 39 25,675 - (35,601) (9,887)
Additions 10 16,891 1,080,666 5,771 79,113 1,182,441
Disposals Hi& = (428,831) (5,580) (100,236) (534,647)
At 31 March 2016 % 201643 A 31 H 1,081,681 10,479,844 253,878 675,911 12,491,314
Accumulated depreciation 2EITE
At 1 April 2015 7A2015F 4 A1 H 385,569 6,132,723 176,611 519,966 7,214,869
Reclassifications E#190 48 31 5,383 - (12,620) (7,206)
Charge for the year A FE 2 T& 25,731 599,820 26,657 75,938 728,146
Disposals Hit - (422,778) (5,580) (99,245) (527,603)
At31March 2016 70201643 H318 41,13:;31, 77777 6 7,?11757, 1{@ 77777 179777,638787 77777 4 7874:073797 - ?,};978,7270767
Net book value BRI &
At 31 March 2016 7201643 A 31H 670,350 4,164,696 56,190 191,872 5,083,108

Furniture,
fixtures and

Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$'000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 xB-FEz  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
EEYREE HERRE RE BMRE st
BT T BT T BT BT T BT T
Cost F(ZA
At 1 April 2015 A 20154818 1,064,751 9,802,334 253,687 729,998 11,850,770
Reclassifications E# 048 39 25,675 - (35,601) (9,887)
Additions 120 16,891 1,080,666 5771 79,113 1,182,441
Disposals H%& = (428,831) (5,580) (100,236) (534,647)
At 31 March 2016 78201643 A 31 H 1,081,681 10,479,844 253,878 673,274 12,488,677
Accumulated depreciation 2EITE
At 1 April 2015 X 201544 A1 H 385,569 6,132,723 176,611 517,329 7,212,232
Reclassifications B 548 31 5,383 - (12,620) (7,206)
Charge for the year AFE 218 25,731 599,820 26,657 75,938 728,146
Disposals H& - (422,778) (5,580) (99,245) (527,603)
At 31 March 2016 7201643 A31H 411,331 6,315,148 197,688 481,402 7,405,569
Net book value fRTHE FE
At 31 March 2016 72201643 A31H 670,350 4,164,696 56,190 191,872 5,083,108
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5. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 5. W%k - HBERRE @

The Group £

Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor  Computer
improvements HK$’000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 XA EBEE HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EEYREE HERRE RE B st
BT T BE¥T T BT T BT T BT T
Cost B
At 1 April 2014 74201454 A1 8 1,053,138 9,069,214 242,734 693,545 11,058,631
Reclassifications &5 48 - 3,950 - (3,950) =
Additions 11 13,658 1,068,393 17,932 99,274 1,199,257
Disposals % (2,045) (339,223) (6,979) (56,234) (404,481)
At 31 March 2015 420154 3 A 31 H 1,064,751 9,802,334 253,687 732,635 11,853,407
Accumulated depreciation 2&iTE
At 1 April 2014 7220144 A1 H 363,475 5,898,653 157,937 507,825 6,927,890
Reclassifications EF#HT 48 - 2,682 - (2,682) -
Charge for the year AFE 2T & 23,181 567,579 25,653 70,584 686,997
Disposals & (1,087) (336,191) (6,979) (55,761) (400,018)
At 31 March 2015 72201543 A31H 385,569 6,132,723 176,611 519,966 7,214,869
Net book value BRI E{&
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A 31 H 679,182 3,669,611 77,076 212,669 4,638,538
HA BER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor  Computer
improvements HK$'000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 RE BT HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BEYREE HERRE RE BRE st
BET T BT T BT BB T T BT
Cost 4~
At 1 April 2014 7A2014F4 /818 1,053,138 9,069,214 242,734 690,908 11,055,994
Reclassifications E#779 18 - 3,950 - (3,950) -
Additions &0 13,658 1,068,393 17,932 99,274 1,199,257
Disposals & (2,045) (339,223) (6,979) (56,234) (404,481)
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A 31 H 1,064,751 9,802,334 253,687 729,998 11,850,770
Accumulated depreciation 2F&EiTE
At 1 April 2014 720144 A1 H 363,475 5,898,653 157,937 505,188 6,925,253
Reclassifications E #0418 - 2,682 - (2,682) =
Charge for the year "FE 2T & 23,181 567,579 25,653 70,584 686,997
Disposals %5 (1,087) (336,191) (6,979) (55,761) (400,018)
At 31 March 2015 72201543 A31H 385,569 6,132,723 176,611 517,329 7,212,232
Net book value R FE

At 31 March 2015 72201543 A 31 H 679,182 3,669,611 77,076 212,669 4,638,538
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6. Intangible assets 6. BEE

The Group £

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
HK$’000 HK$ 000
HZE2016F HZE 20154
3A31BHIEEE 3A31HILEE
BT T BT T
Cost F{z<
At beginning of year IR 4] 1,164,129 1,102,768
Reclassifications E# D4 9,887 -
Additions 10 119,337 127,720
Disposals & (24,493) (66,359)
At end of year RAF4X 1,268,860 1,164,129
Accumulated amortisation 27&5#H
At beginning of year HA%F %] 649,465 623,482
Reclassifications &5 48 7,206 -
Charge for the year 74 7 #§4 380,740 92,106
Disposals %5 (2,353) (66,123)
At end of year FAF#R 1,035,058 649,465
Net book value BREFE
At end of year PR 233,802 514,664

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
HE20164F HZE 20154
3A31BILEE 3A3MIBLEEFE
BT T BT T
Cost A
At beginning of year I 1,154,145 1,093,906
Reclassifications E #1548 9,887 -
Additions &0 119,337 126,598
Disposals & (24,493) (66,359)
Atendofyear w#R 1,258,876 1,154,145
Accumulated amortisation Ri5#sY
At beginning of year FAF#] 641,427 615,981
Reclassifications & #4548 7,206 =
Charge for the year 74 [ 2 #§4 378,794 91,569
Disposals & (2,353) (66,123)
At end of year R 1,025,074 641,427
Net book value BREFE
At end of year R 233,802 512,718




Notes to the Financial Statements

7.

Loans receivable

Certain eligible employees under the Home Loan Interest
Subsidy Scheme were offered downpayment loans for the
purchase of their residential properties (“Downpayment Loan
Scheme”). The repayment period of the loans is the shorter
of the mortgage life and 20 years. Interest charged on the
downpayment loans is determined by the Group from time to
time and is set at 1.282% as at 31 March 2016 (2015: 1.395%).
Downpayment Loan Scheme has been suspended since April
2002.

At 31 March 2016, the downpayment loans advanced to eligible
staff which are fully secured by charges over the properties are
as follows:

B S R = Bl 51

7.

FEWIE R

BERHETHREERRF 2T E
T —EAEREENESERNETAR
ERM(TEMERTE)) - EHEFH
EFHRMERBERL20F - URE
ERE -BHEZNEXHBERTE
A R-E-—RE=ZA=+—BKR
1.282% (ZZ—HF : 1.395%) - EHE
FEEE—ET _FNAREEE -

E-F-AF=A=t—0  SEHLEA
4180 B i) B B9 ER AL M S 1+ R AR
m :

The Group and HA
EBREER

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

20163 A 31H 201543 A31H

BT T BT

Repayable within one year —&FREZ 947 1,053
Repayable beyond one year f2:B@—*F(Ei& 3,020 4,193
3,967 5,246

The loans receivable is neither past due nor impaired. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the receivable mentioned above. According
to the terms and conditions of the scheme, the monthly
principal repayment and payment of interest in respect of the
downpayment loans are deducted from the employees” wages
and that any benefits to which an employee will be entitled
to receive under the HA Provident Fund Scheme shall stand
charged with repayment of downpayment loan and interest
thereon if such debt has not been paid by the employee upon
resignation or on an agreed date. On this basis, the receivable
balance is considered to be fully recoverable.

Placement with the Exchange Fund

HA has designated the placement with the Exchange Fund as a
“financial asset at fair value through profit or loss”. The valuation
technique and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
value measurements are the discounted cash flow and discount
rate respectively. The placement is denominated in Hong Kong
dollar. Its fair value is determined with reference to the estimated
rates of investment return for future years.

FEM BRI BB HIRE - EHME ARA
MEERRE L AERNREEE - RiF
B ERR G - EHERNEALE
EMBERSERENF SR - 5ER
REERES S B B RAEEEBEHER R
FEHE - RIEEREBREEBAE
T3] EMNEAES - §RETRE
LERK o Bt - BIREREHREATNTE
Y -

IEESTFX

BERBERRIIEEZSHREAINR
RArBEINEREBRRSRRE 2 WK
BE| - EARBEFEMANGERITR
EXRAERHA - HHRBERESAR
BEIRE - EIRFBNETREM KRR
EBEERBRARFENGEREQHREETE -

13 OfF 358 5 588 S8 It 8

A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8. Placement with the Exchange Fund (continued)

The interest on the placement is at a fixed rate determined
annually in January and payable annually in arrears on 31
December. Currently, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on certain investment
portfolio of the Exchange Fund over the past six years or the
average annual yield of three-year government bond in the
previous year (subject to a minimum of zero percent), whichever
is the higher. This rate of return has been fixed at 5.5% and
3.3% per annum for January to December 2015 and January to
December 2016, respectively. HA did not withdraw the interest
earned up to 31 December 2015 which would continue to accrue

interest at the same rate payable for the principal amount.

The placement with the Exchange Fund is analysed as follows:

B 5 e 7 B 51

IEEESFR (@)

EETRMERET  ®EF—ABE
YREE+_A=+—A%ft-BEE O
HERIZINEESIREBEBENFHF
HIRERRE - K= FHRFESBE—
FRTFHFERERAE (REE%) * A
ReEht e _T—AF—AE+_-AK
—E—ARFE-AZ+_ANESER®RES
%%Mm&aw)@ﬁ%&ﬁim@i
:?—£¢+—ﬂ +— B BERAF B
b*ﬁA&$%T$%z%fFTﬂ%°

SNEESTFROFWT

Minor Works Projects
Fund [Note 19(b)]

Custodian for Samaritan

Fund [Note 15]

MUTRERES fERBIBFIEESH Total
[KtaE19 (b) ] REAN[HaE 15] st
At 31 March At31 March At31March At31March At31March At31 March
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
2016 & 20154 2016 & 20154 2016 & 20154
3H31H 3H31H 3A31H 3H31H 3A31H 3H31H
BETT AB¥TT B¥TT AB¥Tr BETT BT
Principal amount I 7,300,000 7,300,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 13,300,000 13,300,000
Interest earned but not withdrawn 602,794 190,800 942,666 580,726 1,545,460 771,526
at the reporting date
¥ B ATRER B IRERE RIS A
Accrued interest fEZTFIE 64,842 101,587 56,964 89,246 121,806 190,833
7,967,636 7,592,387 6,999,630 6,669,972 14,967,266 14,262,359
Less: non-current portion (7,300,000) (7,300,000 (6,000,000)  (6,000,000) (13,300,000) (13,300,000)
R IERBE D
Current portion 7&)E5 667,636 292,387 999,630 669,972 1,667,266 962,359
9. Fixed income instruments 9. BIEAERTIH

The fixed income instruments represent Hong Kong dollar
certificates of deposits with maturity periods within five years from
the date of purchase. The investment yield for the year ended 31

March 2016 is between 1.74% and 2.55%.

At 31 March 2016, the fixed income instruments held by the

Group and HA are as follows:

E)\E\IEE‘?EEE%EEIHEt?rﬁE
NEH B TFRE —~NF=A
=+ —HLEFEMREREZE174% =
2.55% 2 ff e

—7

RZB-—REF=ZA=+—H £EKEBE
FRANBEEASTANAT

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

20163 A31H 201543 A31H

BT T BT

Maturing within one year —4F N ZI|£j 250,000 =
Maturing between one and five years —Z 1 4 A E|Hj 1,840,000 1,650,000
2,090,000 1,650,000




Notes to the Financial Statements

9. Fixed income instruments (Continued)

The above financial assets are neither past due nor impaired.
The credit quality of these assets is disclosed in note 3(a) while
the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the fair value of these assets as stated in note 3(b)(ii). The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

10. Inventories

The Group and HA

B 5 e e B 5

9. EEAEIER @)

BB EENREBRNME - ELE
ENEEERRERME3@) - £RE
B &RRWEERBREMEES b)) P
BLBENAAEE - KREYRFEEM
E o EHEA o

10. &

I

Mt 58 5% 2 I B4 A O o8 0 8 S A

EEREER

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

2016 %3 A31H 20153 A31H

BT T BT

Drugs %) 1,053,654 1,086,706
Medical consumables Z2EE#E W 183,227 199,220
General consumables —#& S5 30,479 27,642
1,267,360 1,313,568

11. Accounts receivable

The Group and HA
SERE

1. FEURBRFX

)
I
il

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

2016 %3 A 31H 201543 A31H

BEET T BT T

Bills receivable [note 11(a)] FEURBRES[ MzE 11 (a)] 362,968 384,690

Accrued income JEFHUA 11,597 14,824

374,565 399,514

Less: Provision for doubtful debts [note 11(b)] (58,159) (46,404)
B RIRBELHEE11 (b))

316,406 353,110

(a)  Aging analysis of bills receivable is set out below:

The Group and HA
EEREER

(a) RUYSREMRRESMTAT

il
I

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$°000

20163 A31H 201543 A31H

BT T BT

Below 30 days 30 HLATN 151,965 164,370
Between 31 and 60 days 31 & 60 H 98,877 61,342
Between 61 and 90 days 61 2 90 H 48,550 95,794
Over 90 days i#i& 90 H 63,576 63,184
362,968 384,690

-
N
w
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Notes to the Financial Statements

11. Accounts receivable (continued)

The Group’s policy in respect of patient billing is as follows:

(i) Patients attending outpatient and accident and emergency
services are required to pay fees before services are

performed.

(i) Private patients and non-eligible persons are required to pay

deposit on admission to hospital.

(iii) Interim bills are sent to patients during hospitalisation.
Final bills are sent if the outstanding amounts have not been

settled on discharge.

(iv) Administrative charge is imposed on late payments of
medical fees and charges for medical services provided on
or after 1 July 2007. The administrative charge is imposed
at 5% of the outstanding fees past due for 60 days from
issuance of the bills, subject to a maximum charge of
HK$1,000 for each bill. An additional 10% of the outstanding
fees are imposed if the bills remain outstanding 90 days
from issuance of the bills, subject to a maximum additional

charge of HK$10,000 for each bill.

(v] Legal action will be instituted for outstanding bills where
appropriate. Patients who have financial difficulties may be

considered for waiver of fees charged.

An aging analysis of receivables that are past due but not

impaired is as follows:

B 5 e 7 B 51

. FEUWERRR (@)

SEEBRARENBERNT

(i)

(i)

(iii

~

~

(iv

(v)

BHER

RAZIFIZ 2R REERDARE
XLRRANER

RERBARFFEERALAREA
BiNET -

BiiarERmAZHTHERE - &
WA R RN M ROER
BhednsRRERAA -

BT vtiﬁzﬂ Bat 2 & AT

NEERY  SRBINERESH
THRE - (ERRE RN % 60 BIRE
HMER @I IMIKRKRIE% (EABTT
RE - FIERS LR AR 1,0007T
INERRER L Z O BMARBZHER
Bll& BIMAUW R 0% 1EATTIE -
TIBERE AR ABE 10,000 T °

5 BE L8 R B0 BR FIR (B B B 250 SR EX
ERTE  BEER#EORA - £F
SEETUERRR

BB B 78 Ui B B8 A B e 0 AT

LU

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$°000
20163 A31H 20153 A 31H
BT T BT

Past due by 3B :
Below 30 days 30 HEAT 110,812 129,195
Between 31 and 60 days 31 & 60 H 84,285 47,178
Between 61 and 90 days 61 = 90 H 37,998 86,095
Over 90 days #2i% 90 H 18,134 26,121
251,229 288,589
Receivables that are past due but not impaired include i H{B IR 78 TR 18 Y 1 U R 3R 2 35 AT 6

outstanding debts to be settled by government departments,
charitable organisations or other institutions for whom the credit
risk associated with these receivables is relatively low. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

F -

HEERYHMOBBREZNRK

BELRBEFSENEERRAESE
SEWARFEEAERRIEER -
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11. Accounts receivable (continued)

(b) At 31 March 2016, bills receivable of HK$111,739,000 (2015:
HK$96,101,000) were impaired by HK$58,159,000 (2015:
HK$46,404,000) of which HK$32,558,000 (2015: HK$20,718,000)
related to receivables individually determined to be impaired.
These mainly related to non-eligible persons, the recoverability
of which are considered to be low after taking all possible
debt recovery actions. Remaining allowance for impairment of
HK$25,601,000 (2015: HK$25,686,000) was made by reference
to historical past due recovery patterns. It was assessed that a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The aging

analysis of these receivables is as follows:

11.

(b)

B 5 e e B 5

FE U BR 7R (40)

R-_E—XRNEZA=+—H8 B
111,739,000 (= & — A F: B &
96,101,000 7T ) &) JfE U AR B8 ) 1B /& #&
58,159,000 (= & — f F: B ¥
46,404,0007T) + H A B # 32,558,000 7T
(ZZ— R E: B1#20,718,0007T ) £ (&
AIREREBENERESERME  EE2SRIE
HFEBEBAL  BACKRIFTERIREITE
MR R - ERNKRE#EE X -
E2EANBBRFGBRIERE - #in
EE T B #25,601,0007C (= F — FF
75 5 25,686,000 70 ) BRRERE B - (HET
B BRFE AT UL B - 55 Lk E UK AR B8 MY BR AR
DHTEAT -

The Group and HA
EEREBER

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$°000 HK$°000

20163 H31H 20153 A31H

BT T BT

Below 30 days 30 HLATN 41,153 35,175
Between 31 and 60 days 31 & 60 H 14,592 14,164
Between 61 and 90 days 61 & 90 H 10,552 9,699
Over 90 days i#i& 90 H 45,442 37,063
111,739 96,101

Movements in the provision for impairment of accounts

receivable are as follows:

The Group and HA
SEREER

FENBRFOBE B R BB I T

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$°000

HZE2016F HZE20154F

3A31ALEE 3AMALEE

BT T BT

At beginning of year A4 46,404 57,900
Additional provision &1 58,126 52,227
Uncollectible amounts written off ¥ )R [E 7158 (46,371) (63,723)
At end of year R 58,159 46,404

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not

hold any collateral as security.

E#RER  RANEERRE L EKE
RO AR EE  RELARFEEIERR
(Fivii
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12. Other receivables

B 5 e 7 B 51

12. HAbFEUWERTK

The Group and HA
SEREER

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$°000

20163 A31H 201543 A31H

BT T BT

Donations receivable BB 59,703 96,432

Interest receivable FEYFI S 76,334 82,589

Receivable from the Government for reimbursement or refund 739 2

of expenditure incurred on capital projects

BUSHE SR EBE A T2IE B s S MBI GTE

Others Hfih 40,347 37,506

177,123 216,529

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of
each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not
hold any collateral as security.

13. Deposits and prepayments

Hitp B R BREEE - ERER
RANEERRRE Ll S EREFRH QD
AMEE - KREN A A TR R ERR

13. RER AN

The Group &8

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000
20163 H31H 20153 A31H
BT T BT T
Utility and other deposits AR FEENEMIZE 23,150 23,799
Prepayments to Government departments 101,795 72,725
A1 AR P TR AN BO 008
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 197,027 183,106
REA K REMBNFR
321,972 279,630

HA BER

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000
2016 3 A 31H 2015F3 A31H
BT T BETT
Utility and other deposits AR EEKHEMILZE 23,067 23,716
Prepayments to Government departments 101,795 72,725
BT 8P TR B FRIE
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 197,027 183,106
RER L R EMIAN TR
321,889 279,547




Notes to the Financial Statements

14.

15.

Cash and bank balances

B S R = Bl 51

14.

BE RIRITHERR

The Group and HA
SEREER

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
20163 A 31H 20153 A31H
BT T BEBTIT
Cash at bank and in hand $R1TFR R FHERE 555,403 725,252
Bank deposits with original maturity within three months 1,402,922 2,340,948
JRREH BB = 1 A e ERTTIE K
Cash and cash equivalents & RIREF(E 1,958,325 3,066,200
Bank deposits designated for PPP Endowment Fund [note 20] 10,000,000 -
RILEIEBAESIEERITFR [(H5E20]
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 17,823,372 17,737,531
JRARENER B BB =1 A 93R1TE
29,781,697 20,803,731

The effective interest rate on short term bank deposits is
between 0.01% and 0.83% (2015: 0.01% and 1.11%). These
deposits have an average maturity of 52 days (2015: 49 days).

Balance with Samaritan Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Government
injected HK$10,000,000,000 to support the operation of the Samaritan
Fund, which was established in 1950 by resolution of the Legislative
Council for the purpose of providing financial assistance to needy
patients. As instructed by the Government, HK$4,000,000,000
was vested immediately in the Samaritan Fund. The balance of
HK$6,000,000,000 not immediately required by the Samaritan Fund
was placed with the Exchange Fund since 8 November 2012 by way of
a credit facility entered into between HA and the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority for a fixed period of six years during which time HA would
not be able to withdraw the principal amount.

As HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund, the cumulative
investment return up to 31 March 2016 was recorded together with
the principal amount as balance with Samaritan Fund, which is
unsecured, interest free and denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The
principal amount is repayable upon the maturity of the placement.

The balance with Samaritan Fund is analysed as follows:

15.

RHETERNERF X AE001% =
0.83% ZM(ZF—RF : 0.01% =1.11%
) BEFRNFHIEER A 2K
(ZE—FRF 1 49K) °

IS A B 4R

EHE_ZT—=F=ZA=+—Hiltz&
BEE BNABSANEES FEEK
10,000,000,000 7T * LA #HES 88 1E - #
BADESN - N ATEEDERRER
3 BEMERBAFENRAREED - B
BIF#E T~ - BEEE 4,000,000,000 7T HIFR
HARIR AR © - MR FARENRR ZR AT
6,000,000,000 7T * HRIEEE BHEFS S H
EERFINEERH AT ——F1+—
ANBREFEANEES - FHETANF -
B - BER TR BUEEARS -

HREERRERARBNEESNRE
A EEHEZT-RF=A=+—A1t
FENZRBREOHBERAS - HIIER
IBMNEESHER - EEFFORBRNLE
ABTLREN - WHREIHRRE -

RSN DESHEHROTTT

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$°000

20163 A31H 20153 A31H

BT T BT T

Principal amount 4 6,000,000 6,000,000

Interest earned but not withdrawn at the reporting date 942,666 580,726
s BATEEE B IREAI R S WA

Accrued interest fE=HFIE 56,964 89,246

6,999,630 6,669,972

Less: non-current portion & : FE/BNE D (6,000,000) (6,000,000)

Current portion 7E)E5 999,630 669,972

13 OfF 358 5 588 S8 It 8

A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

16. Creditors and accrued charges

(a)

B 5 e 7 B 51

16. ERANRENEH

The Group £E
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

2016 £3 B 31H 201543 A31H

BT T BT

Trade payables [note 16 (a)] FEfIE ZERFIFE16(a) ] 410,460 362,125

Accrued charges and other payables [note 16 (b)] 5,354,052 4,875,208

et &R R EMBRR (M 16 (b) ]

Current account with the Government [note 16 (c]] 4,343,667 5,111,508
BT 2 MR ARE [MizE16(c) ]

10,108,179 10,348,841

HA BE/
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
20163 A31H 20153 A31H
BT T BT
Trade payables [note 16 (a]] FERE HERFR [T 16 (a) ] 410,460 362,125
Accrued charges and other payables [note 16 (b]] 5,350,355 4,874,660
FERTE AR R EARARFR (16 (b) ]
Current account with the Government [note 16 (c]] 4,343,667 5,111,508
BT 2 BRI RERE (FizE16(c) ]
Current account with a subsidiary EEFIE#E 2 MHRER B 3,620 471
10,108,102 10,348,764
An aging analysis of trade payables is set out below: (a) ENESEFHRRITHOT

The Group and HA
SEREER
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

20163 A31H 201543 A31H

BT T BT

Below 30 days 30 HEA~ 351,452 285,545
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £ 60 H 42,916 38,935
Between 61 and 90 days 61 & 90 H 9,708 20,854
Over 90 days #&if& 90 H 6,384 16,791
410,460 362,125

All trade payables as at 31 March 2016 are expected to be settled ZEARF=ZA=T—HNENESER
within one year. The Group has maintained adequate cash flows ER—FRN - REEERARDR S

and banking facilities for settlement of trade payables.

RRITREANENESERK -



Notes to the Financial Statements

16. Creditors and accrued charges (continued)

(b)  Accrued charges and other payables included accrual for annual
leave of HK$1,888,843,000 (2015: HK$1,756,146,000) and contract
gratuity accrual of HK$1,411,748,000 (2015: HK$1,233,794,000).
The balance also included a provision for doctors’ and non-
doctors’ claims of HK$10,502,000 (2015: HK$121,224,000) as
described in note 4(a).

(c)  The balance mainly included Government funding for designated
programmes or specific items that were already received and
will be recognised as income over the periods in which the
related expenditure is incurred and charged to the statement of
income and expenditure.

17. Deposits received

The Group and HA

SERBER

B 5 e e B 5

16. BRREARENER @

(b)

(c)

FEN B B R E A BR SR B IE AR RS
#1,888,843,000 L(ZE —RHF : B
1,756,146,000 7T) * AR JERTA LIBHE B K
1,411,748000 (= & — 7L F: B ¥
1,233,794,0007T ) » &R IMNEIE —E B
10,502,000t BHEE(ZE — R F: B
121,224,0007T) * AIAS MM sE4 (a) At
rREEENMIER A B NMESRE -

AT B BB EBUT KR H R E R 83
EREMEN  BLBXTRERAXELE
KB RANR AEE R HERIEBA

17. ERIZE

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$°000 HK$°000

2016 £3 H31H 20153 H31H

BET T BT

Patient deposits fHAZE 42,512 38,235

Deposits received from the Government in respect of [AA 8,710

building projects

MEETIRRBATS N ES

Other deposits Hfbiz ¢ 198,503 161,107

241,059 208,052

18. Death and disability liabilities

Under their terms of employment, HA employees are entitled to
death and disability benefit cover. This is funded by HA through
the recurrent subvention from the Government.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

18. AT RIBEEHNEE

REEBGE  BERNEENZFART
RERENRE - Zet3MBEEREBK
RV E LB TIAE D

BERERTAERNZELT

The Group and HA
KEREBER

At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

2016 %3 A 31H 201543 A31H

BT T BT T

Present value of funded obligations ;T & & {THIRE 254,068 239,936
Fair value of plan assets IEIEEMNQ R EE (15,286) (2,044)
238,782 237,892

§ Mt 58 5% 2 I B4 A O o8 0 8 S A
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 55 3 2= Bl 5

18. Death and disability liabilities (continued) 18. AT REERBHEE @)
The movement in the present value of funded obligations is as AEREAZREREHOT ¢
follows:
The Group and HA
EEREER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
BZE2016F BZE20154F
SA3MALEE 3A3BILFE
BT T BT
At beginning of year 4] 239,936 206,350
Current service cost I1TARFEFH X 33,380 27,447
Interest cost FEFZ 3,757 5,048
Benefits paid 2 {S4&F! (5,182) (6,543)
Remeasurement of disability liability 5318 F EEEHE (9,427) 1,606
Remeasurement of death liability STt F| EEEHtE (8,396) 6,028
At end of year R 254,068 239,936
The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows: FEIBEN AR BEZSHNT
The Group and HA
FEREER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
HZE2016F HZE2015F
SA31THLFE 3A31BILFE
BT T BT
At beginning of year R4 4] 2,044 6,663
Adjustment on plan assets 12| &% 12,741 (5,258)
Employer contributions (&3 f£xk 5,683 7,182
Benefits paid B fI1&% (5,182) (6,543)
At end of year FAF#R 15,286 2,044
The death benefits are insured by a group life insurance policy BERBEBERASRBRAEBIEMIET
and the current insurance policy covers the period up to 31 July BRRE - BITRBFEARAEZ
2018. The fair value of plan assets was taken as the present value —N\FLtA=+—H -FEEENARE
of the expected death benefits with respect to the obligations BEARET G ENEENRE -

covered by the policy.



Notes to the Financial Statements

18. Death and disability liabilities (continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income
and expenditure and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income have been calculated by reference to an actuarial
valuation and are as follows:

B 5 e e Bf 51

18. ‘AT REEEBANERE @

THREGFAUXEERIEA2EK R
RTARERORER  RRBBEMESE

The Group and HA
EEREER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

HZE2016F HZE2015F

SH31BLEE 3A31THIEFE

BET T BT

Current service cost I1TARFSE 2 33,380 27,447

Interest cost Fll B 3,757 5,048

Remeasurement of disability liability 538 EEEHHE (9,427) 1,606

Total, included in staff costs [note 25] 27,710 34,101

BE (BREEEINAN)FE25]

Remeasurement of death liability LT #@HE EEF#H 12 (8,396) 6,028

Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) (12,741) 5,258
FHEIEERN TR (TEERSWA)

Total, included in other comprehensive income (21,137) 11,286

it (RREELEEEER)

Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation
are as follows:

REGMERANIERERROT :

The Group and HA
SEREER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

HZE2016F BHZE20154F

SH31BLEE 3A3IHILFE

% %

Discount rate BhIE =% 1.60 1.60
Assumed rate of future salary increases {23 & 1L 18 3.60 3.70

@ RS 5 (D B RS A O 88 S Yk B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

18.

19.

Death and disability liabilities (continued) 18.

The analysis below shows how the present value of the
funded obligations as at 31 March 2016 would have increased/

B 5 e 7 B 51

RTREREANET @

THAMRBEAT EEZBHE BRI K
8 BE-FTAFZA=F+—HRIER

(decreased) as a result of the following changes in the principal EREREM/ORD) -
actuarial assumptions:
Increase in Decrease in
50 basis points 50 basis points
HK$°000 HK$’000
RZ=F50 BF F=RpE 50 B F
BT T BT T
Discount rate B4R =& (14,333) 15,678
Assumed rate of future salary increases {BR& A 28 & 1L 18 15,094 (13,939)
Deferred income 19. IELE W &=

The Group and HA
EEREER

Minor Works
Designated Tseung Kwan O Projects Fund PPP Fund
donation fund  Hospital Fund  [Note 19(b)] [Note 19(c]]
[Note 2(f]] [Note 19(a]] HK$’000 HK$’000
HK$’000 HK$’000 NETE  AREEE Total
EEREES SERBRESD HHES® 4% HK$000
[HaE 2(f)] [KtzE19(a)] [BFaE19(b)] [HaE19(c)] 5t
BEET T BEET T BT T BETT B¥Trx
At 1 April 2014 1K 2014F 4 518 533,889 66,776 12,808,101 - 13,408,766
Additions during the year 410 230,760 - - = 230,760
Interest earned FTEFE - - 383,121 - 383,121
Exchange loss [ X 18% = = (276) - (276)
Utilisation during the year &M - (194) - - (194)
Transfers to consolidated statement - = (25,439) = (25,439)
of comprehensive income
HAR A Z2ARER
Transfers to consolidated statement (229,599) - (1,011,020) - (1,240,619)
of income and expenditure
HRAGRAWREEE
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A 31 H 535,050 66,582 12,154,487 - 12,756,119
Additions during the year AR50 166,032 - - 441,960 607,992
Interest earned FTZEF &S - - 447,373 6 447,379
Exchange loss [& %18 - - (12,532) - (12,532)
Utilisation during the year A EH - (8,153) - - (8,153)
Transfers to consolidated statement - = (17,155) = (17,155)
of comprehensive income
HAAGRAZARER
Transfers to consolidated statement (145,645) - (1,066,209) - (1,211,854)
of income and expenditure
ERTRANTAEE R
Return of unspent funds to the - (58,429) - - (58,429)
Government
REBHABUTHARARIE
At 31 March 2016 20163 A31H 555,437 - 11,505,964 441,966 12,503,367




Notes to the Financial Statements

19. Deferred income (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Tseung Kwan O Hospital Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 1996, the Government
advanced HK$2,047,290,000 to HA for the construction of Tseung
Kwan O Hospital. All interest earned from this grant is repaid
annually to the Government. The hospital was commissioned
during the financial year ended 31 March 2000. At 31 March
2016, the project was completed and the unspent funds were
transferred to current liabilities and subsequently returned to
the Government in June 2016.

Minor Works Projects Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Government
advanced HK$13,000,000,000 (under Subhead 8083MM) to HA for
minor works projects to improve the existing facilities in public
hospitals and clinics. The one-off grant has replaced the annual
block funding allocation under Capital Works Reserve Fund -
Improvement Works Block Vote (Subhead 8100MX) and covers
minor works projects under five planned progammes, with
costing not more than HK$75 million for each individual item. The
five programmes are facility rejuvenation programme, capacity
enhancement programme, safe engineering programme, universal
accessibility programme and regular maintenance/minor works
and preparatory works for major capital works projects.

As approved by the Government, HA has placed
HK$7,300,000,000 with the Exchange Fund over a period of
six years since 11 April 2014 while the remaining funds have
been managed internally and invested within the ambit of HA's
prevailing investment guidelines. The approved grant, together
with the related investment income, will be fully used to meet the
costs of the minor works projects in the coming 10 years or so
starting from April 2014. For the use of funds, HA will continue
to seek prior approval from the Government for each individual
item of expenditure to be funded by the one-off grant, as has
been the practice for the use of funds under Subhead 8100MX.

The exchange loss of HK$12,532,000 for the financial year ended
31 March 2016 (2015: HK$276,000) arose from Renminbi (RMB)
denominated bank deposits. The total interest accumulated since
the initial investment was sufficient to cover the exchange loss.

Minor Works Projects Fund balance predominantly comprised
non-current items.

PPP Fund

On 31 March 2016, the Government allocated HK$10,000,000,000
to HA to establish an endowment fund (note 20), the investment
returns of which, together with the balance of the one-off designated
funding for HA's PPP programmes as at 31 March 2016, are to
be deployed for the ongoing operation as well as enhancement of
the PPP programmes commencing from April 2016.

B 5 ¥ 2R B 51

19. §

IHF

% SE WY 2

ﬁa

BK

HERERAS

REE—HANANE=ZA=1+—BItWEIHK
FENRN - BIFFES B 2 047,290,000 T F
BER NEZEERER - fTEKEE
SHENFNETERERT - BERER
E%@§_22$¢EHE+—E¢WM
BEERNBA RZE—ARF=A=+—
H~E@EEE%*& RE&fE R M FIE
ERTRDHAEE  HEN_T—XF~A
RIBLRBUT -

NETRREBES
REE-T-WF=A=+—ALHORE

FENRN - Bzﬁés‘z,%mmoooooooooE
(7 E8083MMIET) TEE R  HH#ETT
NRITFEIER - &%@*@hﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
Bt e B2 AMUBRACREEEER
gmlﬁ%ﬁgﬁ E TR
(% B 8100MX) » 3 4% F {43 7€ &1 21T
FI1E LR ABE7 5008 T/ EINET
2 - A EIBEREEETE - REE
RFAGTE - Z2HEBFTE - MAEAANGE
BITETE AR EH#E /N TERE
BETREIMNBEHEIE-

BRERERFE R_ZT—NFMA
+ B #5745 7,300,000,000 T 17 A SNE E

C BEINE  BRRAAEER  WIRE
BERRITHRERTEITIRE - Bit#
mﬁﬂﬁ@ﬂ%%ﬁ BEREAXHE=F
—FEMARRRNTFH/ N TRIEER
X - ¥REESHER BERS LR
&@% EmmmxﬁT%iMWi w

—REREDNEEAYBE EAE
mﬁﬁm&

EHE_ZE—"F=ZA=1+—HLHNFK
FE - FHRRIBITHARBE RS BEE
12,632,000 THIFE H R (ZF— R F -
7BHE276,0007T) - BIREHRZRENFIE
BRERAREREABEREX -

NEVTIZIRE ESAEST 2 EEIERENAR -

RIMEBEEE

T XEZA=+—"H BRAREER
P FR 4 15 10,000,000,000 7T A 3% 37 28 AR

& (HFE20) - RS BREOE - EFRE
BRATLE B IER 8 —RIEREE RSN

“E-RFEZA=t+—HO&ER ARE
BEERBICH-T—REHARETH
RILEHIERTE

Dt B R A OFF 58 51 38 <t i

N
7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

20. Public-Private Partnership Endowment
Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Government
approved the allocation of HK$10,000,000,000 to HA to establish
an endowment fund for PPP initiatives. The fund was received by
HA on 31 March 2016. As approved by the Government, the fund
will be placed with the Exchange Fund for a period of six years
commencing July 2016. HA could make use of the investment
returns to regularize the ongoing operation as well as enhancing
the PPP programmes commencing from April 2016.

21. Capital subventions and capital donations

The Group £H

B 5 e 7 B 51

20. RPAEMEEBREE

RBE-_Z-—REF=ZA=1+—BIHNH
BEERN BNBAREERBEFEE
10,000,000,000 T2 L B AR E & - LANGS&
HITALERETE - BERN_F—X
FZA=T—HRBER B AERE
BB T A"FLARSFAEFRINEE
T REAREF - BERAUMNAKRELR
BEEERBICH T —RFENA BT
R DAL E B ERTE -

21. EARHB R E ARG

Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(r)]  [Note 2(f]]
HK$’000 HK$’000 Total
BB ERIBHE HK$°000
[HtaE2(r)] [HKiaF 2(6)] st
BT T BT T BET T
At 1 April 2014 7A2014F4 518 3,391,601 1,218,426 4,610,027
Additions during the year AR50 1,143,643 157,895 1,301,538
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund &5 5/ A TI2EE H$ 25,439 - 25,439
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (673,485) (110,317) (783,802)
HRAAGRAWNEEER
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A31H 3,887,198 1,266,004 5,153,202
Additions during the year AR50 1,187,599 97,024 1,284,623
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund &5 5/ A TR2IEE H$ 17,155 - 17,155
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (1,024,384) (113,686)  (1,138,070)
HARGAWNEEER
At 31 March 2016 7201643 A 31 H 4,067,568 1,249,342 5,316,910

Capital Capital

subventions donations

[Note 2(r]]  [Note 2(f)]
HK$’000 HK$’000 Total
BB BB HK$’000
[KizE2(r)]  [BtaE 2(F)] st
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2014 7 2014F 4 A1 H 3,390,240 1,218,426 4,608,666
Additions during the year AR50 1,142,521 157,895 1,300,416
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund &5 5/ TI2IEE H$ 25,439 - 25,439
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure B4 U s &EE %K (672,948) (110,317) (783,265)
At 31 March 2015 7201543 B31H 3,885,252 1,266,004 5,151,256
Additions during the year AR50 1,187,599 97,024 1,284,623
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund ## 5/l TIRIEE £ ¢ 17,155 - 17,155
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure B FAEU S EE XK (1,022,438) (113,686)  (1,136,124)
At 31 March 2016 7201643 A31H 4,067,568 1,249,342 5,316,910




Notes to the Financial Statements

22. Designated Fund - Home Loan Interest

Subsidy Scheme

The Group offers eligible employees under the scheme an
interest subsidy to finance the purchase of a residence in Hong
Kong. Eligibility under the scheme is primarily determined by the
employee’s length of service. The amount of subsidy generally
represents half of the interest rate payable by the eligible
employee up to a maximum of 6% per annum. However, eligibility
and the maximum amount of subsidies granted are subject to a

number of restrictions as further defined in the scheme.

The scheme is funded by HA through the recurrent subvention
from the Government. A designated fund has been set aside
for the scheme and is maintained in designated bank and
investment accounts which are included under cash and bank

and fixed income instruments balances respectively.

23. Hospital/clinic fees and charges

The charges for hospital services provided by the Group are
levied in accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette. Since
the Government has established a set of policies and procedures
on granting fee waivers to the needy patients, the hospital/clinic
fees and charges recognised as income in the consolidated
statement of income and expenditure are stated net of such
waivers. The amount of hospital/clinics fees and charges
waived for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to

HK$548,084,000 (2015: HK$538,499,000).

24. Investment income

The investment income for the financial year ended 31 March
2016 was stated net of exchange loss of HK$33,652,000 (2015:
HK$275,000) arising from RMB denominated bank deposits.
The total interest accumulated since the initial investment was

sufficient to cover the exchange loss.

B S R = Bl 51

22.

23.

24.

EEES -BEERASEE

=r &l

RIFLIAF S EEARERERRM —
AR SRR BMMPEREBERERRN -
BREIBRAETRNEENRBEFE - 2T
HRAGEREEENFN SR —F
REATF6% - TB - ERIEMRSR
X BBy — LR TEFARR S o

ZETEHBEREBRNNEE LM T
NEB) - sEITRE —SHEES - AUX
NEEERN S 2RO EMAX - I
FRIEERITREFP A DRGIARES R
RITREFEASTEEHRNA -

Bt | 2B E

SEMRENEERY - RREZHRAT
HHOWEBERMEIER - BRENEHIET
—ERTRBEERERAERRRAEER
LR BMELGERTBERTERAER
ARERL / 2EATIRE - BB T ELR
RHE - EHE-_T—A~F=-A=1+—8H
L2 REER  BRENERE/ 2BEM
U 8 5815 548,084,000 T (ZE— 1 4F !
7515 538,499,000 7T ) °

BEW =S
EBE-_T—ANE=A=+—HB1tzH

BEEMIINEERS  BREREBE
33,652,000 7T (= F—F % : B% 275,000
7o) AARBRITIF R BMELEX - B
BERARRREHOF S AT AR
PE K

Palliy

Ay
=

2]

oM 58S 2 F (0

135

9102-G102Z & -Hy I v MR 53 B



juswajeils jeldueuly paypny
pue y10day s,J03Ipny Juapuadapu|

- S
w
o~

910Z-510Z 310day 1enuuy Ajlaoyiny jeydsoH

Notes to the Financial Statements

25. Staff costs

The Group £E

(a)

For the year ended

B 65 = Bl 51

25. BT R

For the year ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
HZE2016F HZE2015%F
3A31HLEE 3A3TBLEFE
BT T BT T
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 37,295,588 34,415,031
EXxge MEMRHREERT
Post-employment benefits Bii%14 @7 :
- Contribution to HA Provident Fund Scheme [note 25 (a)] 2,385,833 2,266,007
BERARSTEIERIME 25(a)]
- Contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme [note 25 (b]] 589,548 519,572
RIESFTEIMER [ 25 (b)]
Death and disability benefits [note 18] 27,710 34,101
T RiGEEA [HiFE18]
40,298,679 37,234,711

HA Provident Fund Scheme (“HAPFS”)

The HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme. The current
scheme was established on 1 April 2003 and governed by its
Trust Deed and Rules dated 29 January 2003, and registered
under section 18 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO").

Most employees who have opted for HA terms of employment
are eligible to join the HAPFS on a non-contributory basis. The
HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme as all benefits are
defined in relation to contributions except that a minimum death
benefit equating to twelve months’ salary applies on the death of
a member. However, when the member’s account balance is less
than his twelve months’ scheme salary, the difference will be
contributed by the Death and Disability Scheme of the Group.

The monthly normal contribution by the Group is currently set at
15% of each member’s monthly basic salary. The percentage of
benefit entitlement, receivable by the employee on resignation or
retirement, increases with the length of service.

At 31 March 2016, the total membership was 29,414 (2015:
29,989). The scheme’s net asset value as at 31 March 2016 was
HK$55,617,495,000 (2015: HK$58,006,082,000).

(a) BIRBEERABELE

[BREERAEERFE ] R—AREH
Kt o RITFAERRE_FT=F—A
“HABEMEREROERR  R_FF=
FOA-BRIRRZEEE  XRECE
FREFRIRET BRI 5+ \5ReEfT

ABLOCEEBERERGMHINES
BEERZMEFTHIN[BREERRD
REERFE - [BREERBABE A
g R—ERETHKFE BR/ETR
REEZERHERAER T —EAFEH
RESLTREMIN - PrH F a8 &R T 5K
RE- T EXRENRBAEHRBER
ZitB T2t —EAEFERE
ZE=RUEHEENETRBEREES
R -

SENEALEHABAREET M
16% - 1 B 7E B o 3R (KBS 7] 28 )24t
S B RS 4 A -

R-E—XRXF=ZA=+—8 " t&#4E
29,414 {4 B (ZE—F : 29,9894 ) -
FTEIM & EFE A5 % 55,617,495,000 7T
(ZZ— A% : ##58,006,082,0007) °



Notes to the Financial Statements
25. Staff costs (continued)

(b) Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPFS”)

In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Group set up a MPFS by participating in master
trust schemes. HA permanent employees can choose between
the HAPFS and the MPFS while contract and temporary
employees are required to join the MPFS unless otherwise

exempted.

The Group’s contributions to MPFS are determined according
to each member’s terms of employment. Members” mandatory
contributions are fixed at 5% of monthly salary up to a maximum

of HK$1,500 per month.

At 31 March 2016, the total membership was 48,730 (2015:
44,013). During the financial year ended 31 March 2016,
total members’ contributions were HK$499,266,000 (2015:
HK$436,790,000). The net asset value as at 31 March 2016,
including assets transferred from members’ previous
employment, was HK$5,808,324,000 (2015: HK$5,940,981,000).

26. Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise office supplies, hospital
supplies, non-capitalised project expenditure and other
administrative expenses. For the financial year ended 31 March
2016, other operating expenses included an accrual for auditor’s

remuneration of HK$2,955,000 (2015: HK$3,050,000).

B S R = Bl 51

25.

26.

B TR ()

sRH M AR E

RiE CRHEIMERTERET SRS - £EIMA
SRIEFEE - BRERIBIMATES
tE - BERRHEERTEESMELR
ERERAEEFE] HREERES
g meankERESAESNRHIER
REEtE] - BRIFERHR -

EEH [RHEATESTE ] OHZ - BRI
FEKEREBIEHME - XS /& H
HERETEAFHS%  LLE A B 1,500
BB e

RZEBE—RE=A=+—8" #&#
B548,730% K B(— ZF — f1 £ : 44,013
)  EEE-_ZT—X"F=ZA=+—H
EZHBEERN KEMNHRRELES
#499,266,0007c (= T — A F: B ¥
436,790,000t ) R T — N E = A
=+—H8 FHEMEEFE  BEKEL
AT E AN EE - A58 5,808,324,000
L (—Z—FRF : B%5,940,981,0007T) °

HE B

HuLBRYBEENAZRAS  BRY
Z - FEALBERAI REMITRAS -
HE-_Z—XR"F=ZA=+—HIEZHK
FE - HEih %8 M B IE R AT A% A B
& B #2955000 (ZE—HF: BE
3,050,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

27. Remuneration of Members of the Board

(a)

(b)

and Five Highest Paid Executives

No Board members are remunerated in the capacity as Board
members.

The remuneration of the five highest paid executives, which
comprised basic salaries and other short term employee
benefits and post-employment benefits, and is included in the
staff costs for the year, is as follows:

B 5 e 7 B 51

27.

RERERAERSHFTHA
SN

FIEHERERENALTERERKE F
DRI E o

FANBIKNACEBRERINTFUTRERR
B TRABNME - EFEFAELH
& MEAME IR B RN LB R AR

For the year ended
31 March 2016
HK$’000
EHZ2016F
Current Position/Name of Executives 3A31HILEEE
WAL/ ITHRASH R BT T
Chief Executive 1TIHE4EE, 5,747
Dr Pak Yin LEUNG Zi5&24
Director (Cluster Services) Ff#9AR7%S 4285 5,127
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG oK /{& i &2
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) /& & Pl 484225 4,926
Dr Che Chung LUK pERIE%E £
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon West) f13EFaB 4848 85 4,926
Dr Sau Ying TUNG 55558
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) J13Er B #4942 E5 4,925
Dr ChiYuen LO EFRELE
25,651

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration
related to performance.

Aif : PRATTEA BT ER B K IR H 6
NEFH -

For the year ended
31 March 2015
HK$’000
BZE2015%
Current Position/Name of Executives 3A31HILEEE
MR/ ITHRABK R BET T
Chief Executive 7TH42%; 5,293
Dr Pak Yin LEUNG 2B %
Director (Cluster Services) H#48 R %4285 4,724
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG R{Z 524
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 78 & 7R 4344 g5 4,537
Dr Che Chung LUK pEi5Fa %
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon West) 1.5 PaH 4848 85 4,537
Dr Sau Ying TUNG EFH5i5
Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories East) #7575 B9 40 85 4,411
Dr Chi Tim HUNG REERER
23,502

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration
related to performance.

it PTATTEA BT ER B K 3R 8 6
NERH -



Notes to the Financial Statements

(a)

(b)

(c]

B S R = Bl 51

28. Related party transactions 28. HREEA THIRXZ
Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group S EEEER A T PENERR ZT A ¢
include the following:
HA has entered into agreements with the Electrical and (a) BEREBNEETIREF L 7 s
Mechanical Services Department (‘EMSD") of the Government HZEAEEREBEER—RKETFIR
for providing biomedical and general electronics engineering R BEREIERELBERZERER
services, hospital engineering services and health building % MEBHRIER  BEZT—X~F=H
maintenance services to the Group. According to the terms of iEj—\—\lEIJ\J,:ZE\ﬁﬂzif‘éW_fﬁ_ B AR50 B
agreements, the amounts incurred for these services for the ﬂﬁﬁ}%;ﬁﬁ%914,42_2,00075(:;ﬁ—ﬁi :
financial year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to HK$914,422,000 751%.866,675,000 1) ° FNIKE TREIR
(2015: HK$866,675,000). Other services provided by the EMSD (AR (NPITRE KB ETR) MR
for the year (e.g. routine maintenance and improvement works) FH %@%7%%531’4%4’000E(:§_£¢ :
were approximately HK$531,494,000 (2015: HK$475,803,000). FEHE475,803,0007T) °
HA has entered into an agreement with the Government to provide ~ (b) & RBHEBUNEI L T i - ARBRRK
serving and retired civil servants, their eligible dependants and NIBE - HEBRNKE REMAFS EE
other eligible persons with the services and facilities at all public ATRRBEIIZ AT B GPIPTT R BB H
hospitals and clinics free of charge or at the prevailing rates as DL B R RAE RS R BE
prescribed in the Civil Service Regulations. For the financial year —ERFEA=THIEZMBEFE
ended 31 March 2016, revenue foregone in respect of medical Z%Lﬁ\/\iﬁm’%ﬁi\m%gﬁﬁ%ﬁ&Z%%
services provided to these persons amounted to HK$340,624,000 %\I,EZ%%MMOB%'OOQ:E(:giﬁi :
(2015: HK$353,111,000). The cost of such services has been taken e S 000 P IS B
into account in the Government’s subvention to the Group. BRERTEREORBN -
Remuneration of key management personnel (c) EZEEAEHD
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and TEEERAEREARNREMTRE I
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities TREEEBEBHEHAL  EBETHRR
of the Group. It comprises the Chief Executive, Cluster Chief HoMEsE . SREREHSEEMR
Executives, Directors and other division heads of the Head Office. HBEE
Total remuneration of the key management personnel is shown FETEASNHINARENT -
below:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZ2016F BZE2015%F
3H31HLEE 3RA3IHILEE
BT T BT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 60,679 55,739
EXFre REMmEEES =T
Post-employment benefits B4 & F 6,091 5,541
66,770 61,280

(d)

Other significant related party transactions with the Government
include annual recurrent grants, capital subventions (note 21) and
designated funds (notes 19 and 22). Details of transactions relating
to the Group's retirement schemes are included in note 25.

(d)

HRFEBALTETHNEMEAR SR
BEREEEME - XM (HRE21) kig
EES (ME19%k22)  BEASERKE
IR HFHFFMNFE25 -

R O 55 51 %8 SS¥ <t 186

«
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28.

(e)

N
O

30.

Related party transactions (continued

Outstanding balances with the Government as at 31 March 2015
and 2016 are disclosed in notes 8, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17 and 20. The
current account with a subsidiary, HACM Limited, is disclosed in
note 16.

. Net cash (used in)/generated from

operating activities

B 5 e 7 B 51

28. HEBA TR S (5)

(e) BE-_ZT —AER=-_FT—X~F=ZA
=+ —BERFZEOREERDHFE
8,12,13,15,16,17 & 20 ## & - Eff} &8 & 1%
[BrERRREEEREGRAR] 2HM
RATER BRI FE 16 255 -

29. &EERE) (FTA)/ FEHEF4R

The Group &8

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
HZE2016 5 HZE20154
3A31HILFE 3A31HILEE
BT T BT
Surplus for the year FNZ& 150,340 1,376,859
Investment income &Iz (188,185) (266,914)
Income transferred from Minor Works Projects Fund (1,066,209) (1,011,020)
#HREg/ A TERBERES ZBA
Income transferred from capital subventions and capital donations (1,138,070) (783,802)
e E A RE AR Z KA
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and 29,184 4,699
intangible assets
HEWE  #ERREREFEESSE
Depreciation and amortisation 7 &% 1,108,886 779,103
Write-back of provision for doctors” and non-doctors’claims (107,695) -
BEMIEEABEmECBERD
Increase in death and disability liabilities 22,027 26,919
ST BRI B IS0
Increase in deferred income iEZEUZIE H 12,234 967
Decrease in inventories &4 46,208 55,051
Decrease in loans receivable & U & F0R 4 1,279 1,591
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable FEUREEFUR 2/ (3E10) 36,704 (59,793)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables 33,151 (38,162)
E AR TR /(3E0)
Increase in deposits and prepayments &< K& T84 B E I (42,342) (27,539)
Increase in creditors and accrued charges fEAEA K & G AN 250,570 1,322,492
Increase in deposits received B Uiz & 180 33,007 35,598
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (818,911) 1,416,049

SEEE (PR / SRS

Funds held in trust

At 31 March 2016, Health Care and Promotion Fund of
HK$ 31,713,000 (2015: HK$36,874,000) was held in trust for the
Government but not included in the financial statements.

30. EREE =

NRZT—ARE=ZA=+—8  £BAET
Ee B BBMTEEE®31,713,0007T
(ZZT— R : ##36,874,0007T) R
EERRERES  EEFERIATER

RA -



Notes to the Financial Statements

31. Donations from the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Hong
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust made donations totalling
HK$81,305,000 (2015: HK$88,446,000] to the following

B 5 e e B 5

31. REEBEFEARERTES
GOEEE

HE-_ZT—RE=A=+—BItHNFKF
ER - BAEEERSETESEATY
HeRE38 H B 181,305,000 (ZE— R4 :

institutions: 7585 88,446,000 7T)
HK$°000
BETT
Jockey Club Inpatient Facilities Modernisation Scheme (Various hospitals) 49,708
ESeLRERE (TRER)
Wong Tai Sin Hospital &AL &R 14,220
Enhanced Home Renal Replacement Therapy Programme (Various hospitals) 8,352
KE@iatal (RRER)
Caritas Medical Centre BAE Z&0% 6,250
Princess Margret Hospital 35522158053 2,022
Hospital Authority Head Office BIREIE Bl iz 730
United Christian Hospital Z& 4 2k 23
81,305

The donations were accounted for in the designated donation fund
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f){(ii).

32. Commitments

At 31 March 2016, the Group and HA had the following
commitments:

(a) Capital commitments

IRIEIEE 2 () (i) TR0 Bt B - 185
NEEBRESR -

32. RiIE

RZE—RNE=ZA=+—H £EREE
BELAT 2 & -

(a) EAREIE

The Group £E

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

2016 £3 A 31H 201543 A31H

BT T BET T

Authorised but not contracted for B ERREERFTZL) 5,618,968 6,614,976
Contracted for but not provided =& 41E K Bt 3,948,641 1,301,598
9,567,609 7,916,574

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000

201653 HA31H 20153 A31H

BT T BT T

Authorised but not contracted for B ERERARETL) 5,618,962 6,611,300
Contracted for but not provided = &Z2 4B KB 3,948,048 1,301,510

9,567,010 7,912,810

Mt 58 5% 2 I B4 A O o8 0 8 S A

141

9102-G102Z & -Hy I v MR 53 B



Sjuswaje)s jeldueuld papny
pue ji0day s Joypny juspuadapu

=
o
(7}
=
~
Y
5
>
c
~
=
o
=
~
<
>
S
3
c
)
-
A
[0}
T
o
=
-~
)
o
—
a1
U
N
o
—
o~

Notes to the Financial Statements
32. Commitments (Continued)

(a) Capital commitments (Continued)

The capital commitments disclosed above include both costs to
be capitalised under property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets and also costs which are to be charged to the statement
of income and expenditure in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(g).

(b) Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2016, the Group and HA had commitments for future
minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

B #5 ¥R = Bl 5
32. A&IE @)

(a) BAHELE &)

RIBMEE2 () PRt & FTIRER - LAt Frs
MEREREREBEEMMENME - KR

RERBLEEER - ARITHEZARK
XBERNFAX

SEMERE

=

RZE-RF=A=+—H SEREE
BE BN THIE M2 B TR HH 8
THE 2 RAERARN FANE -

The Group and HA
EBREER

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015

HK$’000 HK$ 000
20163 A31H 201543 A31H
BT T BB
Buildings £

Within one year —& A & 45,149 36,401
Between one and five years —Z A F REH 144,700 121,918
Beyond five years #2381 FHim 16,779 43,092
206,628 201,411

Equipment #&f&
Within one year —& A& 26,451 48,401
Between one and five years —Z A F R 30,026 6,979
56,477 55,380

33. Taxation

No taxation is provided as HA is exempt from taxation under the
Hospital Authority Ordinance.

34. Contingent liabilities

Adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements
after reviewing the status of outstanding claims and taking into
account legal advice received.

35. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to
the current year’s presentation.

36. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by members of HA on
25 August 2016.

33. BiIE

BERR(BREERIGH) BB -
B A TR

34. HAREFE
R M AR RERMARN - WIRE

PIiSERER I BHRREEL RN
B o

35. Lk EF

ETHRBFOENZY UFEARFE
2T o

36. M ¥RKAEE

APBHRER T —R"FNA-T+AHA
ERERKERB -
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